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CLASS ACTION SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
Jacqueline Jones (“Plaintiff”), and I.Q. Data International, Inc. (“Defendant”), enter into
this arms-length class action settlement agreement.
1. Recitals:
1.1.

On February 11, 2014, Plaintiff filed her class action complaint against Defendant,
through which she alleges violations of the Telephone Consumer Protection Act
(“TCPA”), 47 U.S.C. 227, and the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (“FDCPA”), 15
U.S.C. § 1692 et seq.

1.2.

In its answer, Defendant denied the material allegations included in Plaintiff’s class
action complaint.

1.3.

Defendant also denied that it violated either the TCPA or the FDCPA in the manner
that Plaintiff alleges it did, or in any manner.

1.4.

Plaintiff and Defendant now intend to settle and finally resolve all claims that Plaintiff
asserts through her class action complaint.

1.5.

Aware of the substantial expense and delay likely associated with continued litigation,
mindful of the practical limitations associated with a class-wide recovery, and given
the inherent risks of litigation, Plaintiff and her counsel recognize that continued
litigation is not in the best interest of the members of the proposed class in light of the
recovery attained by this class action settlement.

1.6.

Also aware of the substantial expense and delay likely associated with continued
litigation, and given the inherent risks of litigation, Defendant intends to avoid the
expense and inconvenience of continued litigation, and to buy peace. This settlement
is not an admission of liability.

1.7.

Plaintiff and her counsel believe that the proposed class action settlement is fair,
adequate, and reasonable.

1.8.

Plaintiff and Defendant agree to undertake all steps necessary to the secure the court’s
approval of the class action settlement.

2. Definitions:
2.1.

“Agreement” means this settlement agreement.
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2.2.

“Class” means the class that the court certifies for settlement purposes, which the
parties define as:
All persons and entities throughout the United States (1) to whom I.Q. Data
International, Inc. made or caused to be made calls, (2) directed to a number assigned
to a unique cellular telephone, by (3) using an automatic telephone dialing system or
an artificial or prerecorded voice, (4) from February 11, 2010 through February 11,
2014.
Excluded from the Class are:
a. Any person who is subject to an already existing and applicable release;
b. Any person who is deceased;
c. Any person who has filed for bankruptcy protections under Title 11 of the
United States Code; and
d. Any person who timely mails a request to exclude himself or herself from the
Class.

2.3.

“Class Counsel” means Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC.

2.4.

“Class Members” mean persons who are part of the Class.

2.5.

“Class Notice” means the notice that the court approves in a form substantially similar
to Exhibit 1 to this Agreement.

2.6.

“Class Period” means the period of time from February 11, 2010 through February 11,
2014.

2.7.

“Order Preliminarily Approving the Class Settlement” means the order preliminarily
approving the class settlement in a form substantially similar to Exhibit 2 of this
Agreement.

2.8.

“Finality Date” means the date after which the court enters final judgment, and the time
to appeal the final judgment expires without appeal, or any appeal is dismissed, or the
final judgment is affirmed and not subject to review by any court.

2.9.

“Fairness Hearing” means the hearing that the court conducts under Federal Rule of
Civil Procedure 23 to consider the fairness, adequacy, and reasonableness of the class
action settlement.

2.10. “Final Order and Judgment” means the final order and judgment that the court enters
in a form substantially similar to Exhibit 3 to this Agreement.
2
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2.11. “Preliminary Approval Date” means the date that the court enters the Order
Preliminarily Approving the Class Settlement.
2.12. “Released Parties mean Defendant or any of Defendant’s principals, subsidiaries,
affiliate entities, partners, officers, directors, shareholders, members, parents, holding
companies, corporations, and each of their respective past, present and future managers,
employees, successors, assigns, insurance carriers, attorneys, advisors, predecessors,
divisions, joint ventures, and clients, excluding LiveVox, Inc., any owner of the
Courtyards Apartments, including, but not limited to CAP IV Albuquerque, LLC and
Fidelity CAP IV, LLC, and any entity that hired Defendant to collect the alleged debt
giving rise to Plaintiff’s class action complaint.
2.13. “Released Claims” means:
2.13.1.1.

For Plaintiff, all actions, causes of action, demands, rights, damages, costs,
attorneys’ fees, expenses, and compensation whatsoever that she or her heirs,
agents, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns may have against the
Released Parties, as of the date of this Agreement, and of any kind or nature,
known or unknown, arising under contract, tort, common law, statute, or
regulation, that she may have against Defendant.

2.13.2.

For Class Members, all claims under the TCPA against the Released Parties,
as of the date of this Agreement, and that arise out of or are based upon the
conduct that Plaintiff alleges, by way of her class action complaint, to be in
violation of the TCPA.

2.13.3.

Waiver of Unknown Claims. With respect to the subject lawsuit only, the
Released Claims specifically extend to TCPA claims that Plaintiff and
Settlement Class Members do not know or suspect to exist in their favor at the
time that the Settlement and the releases contained therein become effective.
Plaintiff and Settlement Class Members understand and acknowledge the
significance of these waivers under federal and state statutes, case law, and
rules or regulations relating to limitations on releases. Plaintiff and the
Settlement Class Members acknowledge that they are aware that they may
hereafter discover facts in addition to, or different from, those facts that they
now know or believe to be true with respect to the subject matter of the
Settlement, but that it is their intention to release fully, finally, and forever, all
Released Claims with respect to the Released Parties, and in furtherance of
such intention, the releases of Released Claims will be, and remain in effect
notwithstanding the discovery or existence of any such additional or difference
facts.
3
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2.13.4.

“Released Claims” further means all claims, causes of actions, suits,
obligations, debts, demands, agreements, promises, liabilities, damages,
losses, controversies, costs, expenses, and attorney’s fees of any nature
whatsoever, whether based on any federal law, state law, common law,
territorial law, foreign law, contract, regulation, and regulatory promulgation
(including, but not limited to, an opinion or declaratory ruling), common law
or equity, whether known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, asserted or
unasserted, foreseen or unforeseen, actual or contingent, liquidated or
unliquidated, as of February 11, 2014, that arise out of or are related to the
Released Parties’ alleged use of an “automatic telephone dialing system” or an
“artificial or prerecorded voice” to contact or attempt to contact Settlement
Class Members, to the fullest extent that those terms are used, defined, or
interpreted by the Telephone Consumer Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. § 227, et
seq., relevant regulatory or administrative promulgations and case law, and
that are limited to claims under or for a violation of the Telephone Consumer
Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. § 227, et seq., and any other statutory or common
law claims arising from the use of an automatic telephone dialing system
and/or artificial or prerecorded voice, which is the subject of the claims
asserted in the operative Complaint in this lawsuit.

2.13.4.

Covenant Not to Sue. Plaintiff agrees and covenants, and each Settlement
Class Member will be deemed to have agreed and covenanted, not to sue any
Released Party with respect to any of the Released Claims.

2.13.5.

Termination if Large Number of Opt-Outs. If, at the conclusion of the Opt-Out
deadline, more than 2% of the Settlement Class Members have opted-out of
the Settlement, the Defendant shall have, at their sole and absolute discretion,
the option to terminate this Agreement within fifteen days after the Opt-Out
Deadline.

3. Certification and Notice:
3.1.

On or before March 9, 2015, Plaintiff will file an unopposed motion to preliminarily
approve the class action settlement.

3.2.

Neither Plaintiff nor Defendant will take any action inconsistent with Plaintiff’s motion
to preliminarily approve the class action settlement.

3.3.

Defendant will be responsible for serving the Class Action Fairness Act (“CAFA”)
notice required by 28 U.S.C. § 1715 within ten days after the Court grants Plaintiff’s
unopposed motion to preliminarily approve the proposed class action settlement.
4
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3.4.

Not later than thirty days following the Preliminary Approval Date, the class
administrator will mail the Class Notice and a claim form to each Class Member at the
most current addresses reflected in Defendant’s records for each Class Member.
Before mailing the Class Notice and a claim form, the class administrator will confirm
and, if necessary, update the addresses for the Class Members through the standard
methodology it currently uses to update addresses, including attempting to identify the
name and address of each Class Member based on the telephone number identified for
each Class Member.
The post card in which the class administrator mails the Class Notice and claim form
to the Class Members must include a notation requesting address correction. If any
notice is returned with a new address, the administrator must resend the Class Notice
and a claim form to the new address. For any Class Member whose Class Notice and
claim form is returned without a forwarding address, the class administrator must run
the Class Member’s name through a national change of address database in an effort to
obtain a good address. If the class administrator obtains a new address by doing so, the
class administrator must send the Class Notice and a claim form to the new address.
The class administrator is not responsible for the postal service’s failure to timely
deliver the Class Notice and a claim form to a particular Class Member. The class
administrator will not have any obligation to resend any Class Notice and claim form
that is not returned by the postal service before the Final Fairness Hearing.

3.5.

Not later than thirty days following the Preliminary Approval Date, the class
administrator will build and maintain a dedicated website that includes downloadable
information and documents necessary to file a claim. At a minimum, the downloadable
information and documents must include this Agreement, the Class Notice, a claim
form, the Order Preliminarily Approving the Class Settlement, Plaintiff’s class action
complaint, and when filed, the Final Order and Judgment.

3.6.

Prior to the Final Fairness hearing, the class administrator will provide a sworn
declaration attesting to proper service of the Class Notice and claim forms.

3.7.

Prior to the Final Approval Hearing, Plaintiff will file an unopposed motion to finally
approve the class action settlement.

3.8.

Neither Plaintiff nor Defendant will take any action inconsistent with Plaintiff’s motion
to finally approve the class action settlement.
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4. Consideration:
4.1.

Defendant will establish, or have established on its behalf, a settlement fund in the
amount of $1,000,000 to settle the Jones action in its entirety and to obtain a release of
the Released Claims in favor of Defendant as set forth herein. The settlement fund will
be used to pay for approved claims, costs, expenses and fees of any kind, and any and
all administration fees and costs. Under no circumstances will Defendant be required
to pay an amount in excess of the $1,000,000 settlement fund for any purpose in order
to resolve this matter. Defendant will pay to the administrator, in increments, and as is
necessary, any amounts needed for class administration purposes. With regard to the
funds to be paid to the Class and any attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses ordered to be
paid by the court, after final approval of this settlement by the court, Defendant will
tender the remainder of the settlement fund to the class administrator within thirty days
after the date of the Final Order and Judgment.

4.2.

Out of the Settlement Fund, Defendant will pay:
a. Damages to Plaintiff and the Class Members;
b. The costs and expenses of administrating the class action settlement;
c. An award of attorneys’ fees to Class Counsel, subject to the court’s approval;
d. Reasonable Costs and expenses that Plaintiff and Class Counsel incurred
litigating this matter, subject to the court’s approval;
e. An incentive award to Plaintiff, subject to the court’s approval.

4.3.

Each Class Member who submits a single, valid claim form, which provides the Class
Member’s name, address, and telephone number, either online or by U.S. Mail with a
postmark of no later than seventy-five days after the Preliminary Approval Date, will
be entitled to a pro rata share of the settlement fund as it exists after deducting:
a. Costs and expenses of administrating the class action settlement;
b. Class Counsel’s attorneys’ fees in an amount not to exceed thirty-percent of the
settlement fund, subject to the court’s approval;
c. Class Counsel’s costs and expenses not to exceed $25,000, subject to the court’s
approval; and
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d. Plaintiff’s incentive award, not to exceed $20,000, subject to the court’s
approval.
e. Each Settlement check will be negotiable for ninety days after it is issued. Any
funds not paid out as the result of uncashed settlement checks will be paid out
as a cy pres award, to a recipient agreed to by the parties and approved by the
court.
5. Opt-Outs:
5.1.

Any Class Member that wishes to exclude himself or herself from the class action
settlement must mail a written request for exclusion to Class Counsel and to counsel
for Defendant postmarked no more than sixty days after the Preliminary Approval Date.

5.2.

Through a request for exclusion, and subject to the court’s approval, a Class Member
must include his or her:
a. Full name;
b. Address;
c. Telephone number; and
d. A statement that he or she wishes to be excluded from the class action
settlement.

5.3.

Any Class Member who submits a valid and timely request for exclusion will neither
be bound by the terms of this Agreement, nor receive any of the benefits of this
Agreement.

5.4.

The class administrator will provide a list of the names of each Class Member who
submitted a valid and timely request for exclusion.

6. Objections:
6.1.

Any class member who wishes to object to the class action settlement must mail a
written notice of objection to Class Counsel, to counsel for Defendant, and to the court,
postmarked no more than sixty days after the Preliminary Approval Date.

6.2.

Through his or her notice of objection, and subject to the court’s approval, a Class
Member must include his or her:
7
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a. Full name;
b. Address;
c. Telephone number;
d. A statement of the objection;
e. A detailed description of the facts underlying the objection;
f. A detailed description of the legal authorities that support each objection;
g. A statement noting whether the Class Member intends to appear at the fairness
hearing;
h. A list of all witnesses that the Class Member intends to call by live testimony,
deposition testimony, or affidavit or declaration testimony, and
i. A list of exhibits that the Class Member intends to present at the Final Fairness
Hearing.
6.3.

Class Members who do not submit a valid and timely objection will be barred from
seeking review of the proposed class action settlement by appeal, or otherwise.

7. Release:
7.1.

Upon the court’s entry of the Final Order and Judgment, Plaintiff, and each Class
Member, will release and forever discharge the Released Parties from the Released
Claims.

8. Exclusive Remedy:
8.1. The relief included in this Agreement is the exclusive remedy of recovery for the Released
Claims.

8
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9. Attorneys’ Fees, Costs, Expenses, and Incentive Award:
9.1.

Defendant agrees not to oppose Class Counsel’s request for attorneys’ fees in an
amount not to exceed thirty-percent of the settlement fund.

9.2.

Defendant agrees not to oppose Class Counsel’s request for reasonable costs and
expenses not to exceed $25,000.

9.3.

Defendant agrees not to oppose Plaintiff’s request for an incentive award not to exceed
$20,000.

9.4.

The court’s order regarding Class Counsel’s request for attorneys’ fees, costs, and
expenses, and Plaintiff’s request for an incentive award, will not affect the finality of
the class action settlement.

10. No Admission of Liability:
10.1. Plaintiff and Defendant agree that this Agreement does not constitute an admission by
Defendant that Plaintiff’s claims or allegations are true or correct.
10.2. Nothing herein shall constitute an admission by Defendant of wrongdoing, or liability
or of the truth of any allegations in the Jones Action. Nothing herein shall constitute an
admission by Defendant that the Jones Action is properly brought on a class or
representative basis, or that classes may be certified in those actions, other than, for
settlement purposes. To this end, the settlement of the Action, the negotiation and
execution of this Agreement, and all acts performed or documents executed pursuant
to or in furtherance of the Settlement: (i) are not and shall not be deemed to be, and
may not be used as an admission or evidence or any wrongdoing, or liability on the part
of Defendant, or of the truth of any of the allegations in the Jones Action; (ii ) are not
and shall not be deemed and may not be used as an admission or evidence of any fault
or admission on the part of Defendant in any civil, criminal, or administrative
proceeding in any court, arbitration forum, administrative agency, or other tribunal; and
(iii) are not and shall not be deemed to be and may not be used as an admission of the
appropriateness of these or similar claims for class certification.
10.1. Solely for purposes of avoiding the expense and inconvenience of the further litigation,
Defendant does not oppose, and agrees to certification of the Class, for settlement
purposes only, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3). Preliminary Certification of the
Class for settlement purposes shall not be deemed a concession that certification of a
litigation class is appropriate, nor would Defendant be precluded from challenging
class certification in further proceedings in the Jones Action or in any other action if
the Settlement is not finalized or finally approved. If the Settlement is not finally
9
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approved by the Court for any reason whatsoever, the certification of the Class will be
void and no doctrine or waiver estoppel, or preclusion will be asserted in a proceeding
involving Defendant. No agreements made by or entered into by Defendant in
connection with the Settlement may be used by Plaintiff, any person in the Class or any
other person to establish any of the elements of class certification in any litigated
certification proceedings, whether in the Jones Action or any other judicial proceeding.
11. Representations and Warranty:
11.1. Class Counsel believes that the class action settlement is in the best interests of the
Class Members.
11.2. Plaintiff warrants that on the date this Agreement is executed, she owns the claims that
she asserts in connection with this matter, and that she has not assigned, pledged, sold
or otherwise transferred her claims (or an interest in such claims), and that on the
Finality Date she will own her claims free and clear of any and all liens, claims, charges,
security interests or other encumbrances of any nature whatsoever, except for any
contingent legal fees and expenses.
12. Appeals:
12.1. If a Class Member appeals the Final Order and Judgment, Plaintiff and Defendant agree
to support this Agreement on appeal.
12.2. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to preclude Plaintiff, Defendant, or
Class Counsel, from appealing any order inconsistent with this Agreement.
12.3. In the event an Appeal results in a reversal of a Final Order and Judgment, the
settlement funds shall be returned by the class administrator to Defendant or its payor.
13. Distribution of the Settlement Fund:
13.1. Within thirty days of the Finality Date, the class administrator will mail a settlement
check to each Class Member who submitted a single, valid and timely claim form. Each
Class Member may only submit one claim with respect to one unique cell phone
number, regardless of how many times the Class member claims they were contacted
via an automatic telephone dialing system or by an artificial or pre-recorded voice.
13.2. Within ten days of the Finality Date, the class administrator will mail a check to
Plaintiff in the amount of the incentive award awarded to her.
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13.3. Within ten days of the Finality Date, the class administrator will mail a check to Class
Counsel in the amount the attorneys’ fees and costs and expenses awarded to it.
13.4. If any money remains in the settlement fund after the date that all settlement checks are
voided due to non-deposit (i.e. checks that Class Members do not cash), this amount
will be paid as a cy pres award, to be approved by the court.
After Final Judgment, the Released Claims will be dismissed in their entirety, with
prejudice.
14. Miscellaneous Provisions:
14.1. This Agreement is the entire agreement between Plaintiff and Defendant. All
antecedent and contemporaneous extrinsic representations, warranties, or collateral
provisions concerning the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement are intended
to be discharged and nullified.
14.2. Neither Plaintiff nor Defendant may modify this Agreement, except by a writing, that
Plaintiff and Defendant execute, and that the court approves.
14.3. All notices required by this Agreement, between Plaintiff, Defendants, Class Counsel,
and Defendant’s counsel, must be sent by first class U.S. mail, by hand delivery, by
facsimile, or by electronic mail, to:
Aaron D. Radbil
Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC
5550 Glades Road, Suite 500
Boca Raton, FL 33431
Facsimile: (561) 961-5684
aradbil@gdrlawfirm.com
David J. Kaminski
Stephen A. Watkins
Carlson & Messer LLP
5959 W. Century Boulevard, Ste. 1214
Los Angeles, CA 90045
Telephone: (310) 242-2200
Facsimile: (310) 242-2222
kaminskid@cmtlaw.com

11
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14.4. Section headings in this Agreement are for convenience and reference only, and are not
to be taken to be a part of the provisions of this Agreement, and do not control or affect
meanings, constructions or the provisions of this Agreement.
14.5. Plaintiff and Defendant will exercise their best efforts, to take all steps, and expend all
efforts that may become necessary to effectuate this Agreement.
14.6. Plaintiff and Defendant will be deemed to have drafted this Agreement equally, and
neither it, nor any related documents, will be construed strictly against Plaintiff or
Defendant.
14.7. Plaintiff and Defendant, and their counsel, may sign this Agreement in counterparts,
and the separate signature pages may be combined to create a binding document, which
constitutes one instrument.
15. Administrative and Notification Process and Tax:
15.1. Third-Party Claims Administrator. The Claims Administrator shall be responsible for
all matters relating to the administration of this Settlement, as set forth herein. Those
responsibilities include, but are not limited to, giving notice, obtaining new addresses
for returned mail, setting up and maintaining the Settlement Website and toll-free
telephone number, processing claims, acting as a liaison between Class Members and
the parties regarding claims information, approving claims, rejecting any mailing of
settlement payments to Settlement Class Members, and any other tasks reasonably
required to effectuate the foregoing. The Claims administrator will provide Weekly
updates on the claims status to counsel for both parties.
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EXHIBIT 1
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW MEXICO
Jacqueline Jones, on behalf of herself
and others similarly situated,
Plaintiff,
vs.

Case No. 1:14-cv-00130-PJK-RHS

I.Q. Data International, Inc.
Defendant.
PROPOSED CLASS NOTICE
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This is a notice of a settlement of a class action lawsuit.
This is not a notice of a lawsuit against you.
If you received a telephone call from I.Q. Data International, Inc. (“I.Q.”) between
February 11, 2010 and February 11, 2014, you may be entitled to compensation as a result
of the settlement in the class action lawsuit captioned:
Jacqueline Jones v. I.Q. Data International, Inc., No. 1:14-cv-00130-PJK-RHS (D. N.M.)
A federal court authorized this notice.
This is not a solicitation from a lawyer.
Please read this notice carefully. It explains your rights and options to participate in a class
action settlement.
What are your legal rights and options?
SUBMIT A TIMELY CLAIM FORM:

If you submit a timely claim form you will
receive a pro rata share of the settlement
fund.

DO NOTHING:

If you do nothing, you will not receive a pro
rata share of the settlement fund, but you will
release any claim you have against I.Q.

EXCLUDE YOURSELF:

If you exclude yourself from the settlement, you
will not receive a pro rata share of the
settlement fund, but you will not release any
claim you have against I.Q.

OBJECT:

You may object to the settlement.
Why did you get this notice?

This is a notice of a proposed settlement in a class action lawsuit. The settlement would
resolve the lawsuit, which Jacqueline Jones (“Ms. Jones”) filed against I.Q. Please read this notice
carefully. It explains the lawsuit, the settlement, and your legal rights, including the process for
receiving a settlement check, excluding yourself from the settlement, or objecting to the settlement.
What is this lawsuit about?
Ms. Jones filed this lawsuit against I.Q., alleging that I.Q. violated the Telephone
Consumer Protection Act (“TCPA”), 47 U.S.C. § 227. I.Q. denies Ms. Jones’s allegations, but has
agreed to the settlement.
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Why is this a class action?
In a class action, one or more people called “class representatives” file a lawsuit on behalf
of people who have similar claims. All of these people together are a “class” or “class members.”
The court accordingly resolves claims for all class members, except for those who exclude
themselves from the class.
Why is there a settlement?
Ms. Jones, on the one hand, and I.Q., on the other, have agreed to settle the lawsuit to avoid
the time, risk, and expense associated with it, and to achieve a final resolution of the disputed
claims. Under the settlement, class members will obtain a payment in full settlement of the TCPA
claims that Ms. Jones raises in the lawsuit. Ms. Jones and her attorneys think the settlement is best
for all class members.
How do you know if your claims are included in the settlement?
You received this notice because I.Q.’s records identified you as a class member. This
means you appear to fit the description of the class that the court certified for settlement purposes:
All persons and entities throughout the United States (1) to whom I.Q. Data
International, Inc. made or caused to be made calls, (2) directed to a number
assigned to a unique cellular telephone, by (3) using an automatic telephone
dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded voice, (4) from February 11,
2010 through February 11, 2014.
What does the settlement provide?
I.Q. will establish a settlement fund in the amount of $1,000,000. Out of the settlement
fund, I.Q. will pay:
a. Damages to Ms. Jones and the class members;
b. The costs and expenses of administrating the class action settlement;
c. An award of attorneys’ fees, subject to the court’s approval;
d. Costs and expenses incurred litigating this matter, subject to the court’s approval; and
e. An incentive award to Ms. Jones, subject to the court’s approval.
Each class member who submits a timely and valid claim form will be entitled to his or her
pro rata share of the settlement fund as it exists after deducting:
a. Costs and expenses of administrating the class action settlement;
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b. Attorneys’ fees in an amount not to exceed thirty-percent of the settlement fund, subject
to the court’s approval;
c. Costs and expenses not to exceed $25,000, subject to the court’s approval; and
d. Ms. Jones’s incentive award, not to exceed $20,000, subject to the court’s approval.
How can you get a payment?
You must mail a valid claim form to [administrator] postmarked by [date—no later than
seventy-five days after the Preliminary Approval Date]. Or you must submit a valid claim through
[website] by [date—no later than seventy-five days after the Preliminary Approval Date].
When will you be paid?
If the court finally approves the settlement, settlement checks will be mailed to class
members who timely mailed or submitted valid claim forms no later than thirty days after the
judgment in the lawsuit becomes final. If there is an appeal of the settlement, payment may be
delayed.
What rights are you giving up in this settlement?
Unless you exclude yourself from the settlement, you will be considered a member of the
class, which means you give up your right to sue or continue a lawsuit against I.Q. over the released
claims. Giving up your legal claims is called a release. Unless you formally exclude yourself from
the settlement, you will release your claims against I.Q.
For more information on the release, released parties, and released claims, you may obtain
a copy of the class action settlement agreement from the United States District Clerk for the District
of New Mexico.
By when must you enter an appearance?
Any class member who desires to enter an appearance pursuant to Rule 23(c)(2)(B)(iv)
must do so by [date—no more than sixty days after the preliminary approval date]. To do so you
must file with the clerk of the court a written notice of your appearance and you must serve a copy
of that notice, by certified mail, facsimile, or hand-delivery, upon Ms. Jones’s attorneys and I.Q.’s
attorneys, at the addresses set forth below.
How can you exclude yourself from the settlement?
You may exclude yourself from the settlement, in which case you will not receive a
payment. If you wish to exclude yourself from the settlement you must mail a written request for
exclusion to Ms. Jones’s attorneys, to I.Q.’s attorneys, and to the court, at the addresses set forth
below, postmarked no more than [date—no more than sixty days after the Preliminary Approval
Date]. You must include in your request for exclusion your:
a. Full name;
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b. Address;
c. Telephone number; and
d. A statement that you wish to be excluded from the settlement.
You must sign the request personally. If any person signs on your behalf that person must
attach a copy of the power of attorney authorizing that signature.
When and where will the court decide whether to approve the settlement?
The court will hold a final fairness hearing on [date], at [time]. The hearing will take place
in United States District Court for the District of New Mexico, Albuquerque Division, Courtroom
[#], located at 333 Lomas Blvd. N.W., Albuquerque, NM 87102. At the final fairness hearing the
court will consider whether the settlement is fair, reasonable, and adequate and, if so, whether it
should be granted final approval. The court will hear objections to the settlement, if any. The court
may make a decision at that time, postpone a decision, or continue the hearing.
Do you have to attend the hearing?
No. You are not required to attend the hearing. But you are welcome to attend the hearing
at your own expense. You cannot speak at the hearing if you have excluded yourself from the class
settlement. Once you have excluded yourself, the class settlement does not affect your legal rights.
What if you want to object to the settlement?
If you do not exclude yourself from the settlement, you can object to the settlement if you
do not believe it is fair, reasonable, and adequate. If you wish to object, you must mail a written
notice of objection to Ms. Jones’s attorneys, I.Q.’s attorneys, and to the court, at the addresses set
forth below, postmarked by [date—no more than sixty days after the Preliminary Approval Date].
You must include in your request for exclusion your:
a. Full name;
a. Address;
b. Telephone number;
c. A statement of the objection;
d. A detailed description of the facts underlying the objection;
e. A detailed description of the legal authorities that support each objection;
f. A statement noting whether the Class Member intends to appear at the fairness hearing;
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g. A list of all witnesses that the Class Member intends to call by live testimony,
deposition testimony, or affidavit or declaration testimony, and
h. A list of exhibits that the Class Member intends to present at the Final Fairness Hearing.

What if you do nothing?
If you do nothing, and the court approves the settlement agreement, you will not receive a
pro rata share of the settlement fund, but you will release any claim you have against the I.Q.
Unless you exclude yourself from the settlement, you will not be able to sue or continue a lawsuit
against I.Q. over the released claims.
What will happen if the Court does not approve the settlement?
If the court does not finally approve the settlement, or if it finally approves the settlement
and the approval is reversed on appeal, or if the settlement does not become final for some other
reason, you will receive no benefits and the lawsuit will continue.
Who are Ms. Jones’s attorneys?
Ms. Jones’s attorneys are:
Aaron D. Radbil
Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC
5550 Glades Rd., Suite 500
Boca Raton, FL 33431
The court has appointed Ms. Jones’s attorneys to act as class counsel. You do not have to
pay Ms. Jones’s attorneys. If you want to be represented by your own lawyer, and have that lawyer
appear in court for you in this case, you must hire one at your own expense.
Who are I.Q.’s attorneys?
I.Q.’s attorneys are:
David J. Kaminski
Carlson & Messer LLP
5959 W. Century Boulevard, Ste. 1214
Los Angeles, CA 90045
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Before what court is this matter pending?
Ms. Jones filed her class action lawsuit in the following court:
United States District Court for the District of New Mexico
Albuquerque Division
333 Lomas Blvd. N.W.
Albuquerque, N.M 87102
Where can you get additional information?
This notice is only a summary of the settlement. All documents filed with the court,
including the full class action settlement agreement, may be reviewed or copied at the United
States District Court for the District of New Mexico, Albuquerque Division.
If you would like additional information about this matter, please contact:
[Administrator]
or
Aaron D. Radbil
Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC
5550 Glades Rd., Suite 500
Boca Raton, FL 33431
(561) 826-5477
aradbil@gdrlawfirm.com
Please do not call the judge about this case. Neither the judge, nor the clerk of court, will
be able to give you advice about this case. Furthermore, I.Q.’s attorneys do not represent you, and
cannot give you legal advice.
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EXHIBIT 2
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW MEXICO
Jacqueline Jones, on behalf of herself
and others similarly situated,
Plaintiff,
vs.

Case No. 1:14-cv-00130-PJK-RHS

I.Q. Data International, Inc.
Defendant.
ORDER PRELIMINARILY APPROVING CLASS SETTLEMENT
The parties to this matter reached a proposed settlement, and accordingly seek preliminary
approval of their proposed settlement.
This Court heard argument on the parties’ joint motion to preliminarily approve their
proposed class action settlement on __________ ___, 2015.
Having considered the parties’ motion, this Court preliminarily approves the parties’
proposed settlement.
The Court also preliminarily finds that this matter meets the requirements for class
certification under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23. See Shook v. El Paso Cnty., 386 F.3d 963,
971 (10th Cir. 2004) (“In determining the propriety of a class action, the question is not whether
the plaintiff or plaintiffs have stated a cause of action or will prevail on the merits, but rather
whether the requirements of Rule 23 are met.”).
This Court further finds that it may finally approve the parties’ proposed settlement, as it
is fair, adequate, and reasonable, and because the parties reached their proposed agreement as a
result of intensive, non-collusive, arms-length negotiations. See Jones v. Nuclear Pharmacy, Inc.,
741 F.2d 322, 324 (10th Cir. 1984) (“In exercising its discretion, the trial court must approve a
settlement if it is fair, reasonable and adequate.”).
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This Court will hold a fairness hearing on __________ ___, 2015, at _____ _.m., in
Courtroom _____ of the United States District Court for the District of New Mexico, Albuquerque
Division, located at 333 Lomas Blvd. N.W., Albuquerque, NM 87102, to determine whether this
Court should finally approve the parties’ proposed settlement, and to resolve all related matters.
This Court approves, as to form and content, the parties’ proposed notice of class action
settlement, a copy of which is found at Doc. __.
This Court orders that the notice of class action settlement must be distributed as follows:
Not later than thirty days following the Preliminary Approval Date, Defendant, by way of
[administrator], will mail the Class Notice and a claim form to each Class Member at the most
current addresses reflected in Defendant’s records for each Class Member.
Before mailing the Class Notice and a claim form, Defendant, by way of [administrator],
will confirm and, if necessary, update the addresses for the Class Members through the standard
methodology it currently uses to update addresses, including attempting to identify the name and
address of each Class Member based on the telephone number identified for each Class Member.
The envelopes in which Defendant, by way of [administrator], mails the Class Notice and
a claim form to the Class Members must include a notation requesting address correction. If any
notice is returned with a new address, Defendant, by way of [administrator], must resend the Class
Notice and a claim form to the new address. For any Class Member whose Class Notice and claim
form is returned without a forwarding address, Defendant, by way of [administrator], must run the
Class Member’s name through a national change of address database in an effort to obtain a good
address. If Defendant, by way of [administrator], obtains a new address by doing so, Defendant,
by way of [administrator], must send the Class Notice and a claim form to the new address.
Defendant is not responsible for the postal service’s failure to timely deliver the Class Notice and
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a claim form to a particular Class Member. Defendant will not have any obligation to resend any
Class Notice and claim form that is not returned by the postal service before the Final Fairness
Hearing.
Not later than twenty-one days following the Preliminary Approval Date, Defendants, by
way of [administrator], will build and maintain a dedicated website (www._____.com) that
includes downloadable information and documents necessary to file a claim. At a minimum, the
downloadable information and documents must include this Agreement, the Class Notice, a claim
form, the Order Preliminarily Approving the Class Settlement, Plaintiff’s class action complaint,
and when filed, the Final Order and Judgment.
This Court finds that the parties’ proposed notice of class action settlement, and the ordered
distribution thereof, meets the requirements of due process under the Constitution and Federal
Rule of Civil Procedure 23(e), that it is the best practicable notice under the circumstances, and
that it constitutes due and sufficient notice to all persons entitled to notice of class action
settlement.
This Court finds that the parties’ proposed notice of class action settlement is adequate and
will give all class members sufficient information to enable them to make informed decisions as
to the parties’ proposed settlement, and the right to object to, or opt-out of, it. See DeJulius v. New
England Health Care Employees Pension Fund, 429 F.3d 935, 944 (10th Cir. 2005) (“[O]ur
precedent focuses upon whether the district court gave ‘the best notice practicable under the
circumstances including individual notice to all members who can be identified through reasonable
effort.’”) (quoting In re Integra Realty Res., Inc., 262 F.3d 1089, 1110 (10th Cir. 2001)).
For purposes of effectuating the parties’ proposed settlement, this Court preliminarily
certifies the following settlement class:
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All persons and entities throughout the United States (1) to whom I.Q. Data
International, Inc. made or caused to be made calls, (2) directed to a number
assigned to a unique cellular telephone, by (3) using an automatic telephone
dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded voice, (4) from February 11,
2010 through February 11, 2014.
Excluded from the Class are:
a. Any person who is subject to an already existing and applicable release;
b. Any person who is deceased;
c. Any person who has filed for bankruptcy protections under Title 11 of the
United States Code; and
d. Any person who timely mails a request to exclude himself or herself from the
Class.
Also for purposes of effectuating the parties’ proposed settlement, this Court appoints
Jacqueline Jones as a class representative, and the following attorneys and law firm as class
counsel:
Aaron D. Radbil
Michael L. Greenwald
Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC
5550 Glades Rd., Suite 500
Boca Raton, FL 33431
See Esposito v. Deatrick & Spies, P.S.C., No. 7:13-CV-1416 GLS/TWD, 2015 WL 390392, at *2
(N.D.N.Y. Jan. 28, 2015) (“[T]he Court certifies . . . Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC as Class
Counsel.”); Green v. Dressman Benzinger Lavelle, PSC, No. 1:14-CV-00142-SJD, 2015 WL
223764, at *2 (S.D. Ohio Jan. 16, 2015) (“. . . Greenwald Davidson PLLC is certified as Class
Counsel.”); Donnelly v. EquityExperts.org, LLC, No. 4:13-CV-10017-TGB, 2015 WL 249522, at
*2 (E.D. Mich. Jan. 14, 2015) ([T]he Court certifies . . . Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC as
Class Counsel.”); Ritchie v. Van Ru Credit Corp., No. 2:12-CV-01714-PHX-SM, 2014 WL
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3955268, at *2 (D. Ariz. Aug. 13, 2014) ([T]he Court certifies . . . Greenwald Davidson PLLC as
Class Counsel.”).
Any class member who wishes to exclude himself or herself from the class action
settlement must mail a written request for exclusion to Class Counsel and to counsel for Defendant,
postmarked no more than sixty days after the Preliminary Approval Date. Through a request for
exclusion, a Class Member must include his or her:
a. Full name;
b. Address;
c. Telephone number; and
d. A statement that he or she wishes to be excluded from the class action settlement.
Any Class Member who submits a valid and timely request for exclusion will neither be
bound by the terms of this Agreement, nor receive any of the benefits of this Agreement
Any class member who wishes to object to the class action settlement must mail a written
notice of objection to Class Counsel, to counsel for Defendant, and to the court, postmarked no
more than sixty days after the Preliminary Approval Date. Through his or her notice of objection,
a Class Member must include his or her:
a. Full name;
b. Address;
c. Telephone number;
d. A statement of the objection;
e. A detailed description of the facts underlying the objection;
f. A detailed description of the legal authorities that support each objection;
g. A statement noting whether the Class Member intends to appear at the fairness hearing;
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h. A list of all witnesses that the Class Member intends to call by live testimony,
deposition testimony, or affidavit or declaration testimony, and
i. A list of exhibits that the Class Member intends to present at the Final Fairness Hearing.
Class Members who do not submit a valid and timely objection will be barred from seeking
review of the proposed class action settlement by appeal, or otherwise.
This order should not be construed as, or deemed to be, evidence of a presumption,
implication, concession, or admission by Defendant concerning (1) any alleged liability, fault, or
wrongdoing; (2) the appropriateness of any measure of alleged loss or damages; or (3) the
appropriateness of class certification for any purposes other than settlement.
If the parties’ settlement agreement is terminated pursuant to its terms, or if this Court does
not finally approve the parties’ proposed settlement, Plaintiff and Defendant will be returned to
the position they were in prior to execution of their settlement agreement, with the same status quo
rights and interests as they had prior to execution their settlement agreement.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
Dated: ________________, 2015.

____________________________________
United States Circuit Judge
Sitting by designation
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEW MEXICO
Jacqueline Jones, on behalf of herself
and others similarly situated,
Plaintiff,
vs.

Case No. 1:14-cv-00130-PJK-RHS

I.Q. Data International, Inc.
Defendant.
FINAL ORDER AND JUDGMENT
On __________ ___, 2015, the parties reached a settlement agreement as a result of
intensive, non-collusive, arms-length negotiations.
On __________, 2015, Plaintiff filed her unopposed motion to preliminarily approve the
class action settlement.
On __________ ___, 2015, Defendant served the Class Action Fairness Act (“CAFA”)
notice required by 28 U.S.C. § 1715.
On __________ ___, 2015, this Court granted Plaintiff’s unopposed motion to
preliminarily approve the class action settlement.
On __________ ___, 2015, Defendant, by way of [administrator] distributed notice of the
class action settlement, as ordered.
On __________, 2015, Plaintiff filed her unopposed motion to finally approve the class
action settlement.
On __________ ___, 2015, this Court held a fairness hearing regarding the parties’ class
action settlement.
Having considered Plaintiff’s motion, this Court finally approves the class action
settlement.
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This Court also confirms that it has jurisdiction over this matter and the parties to it.
This Court further certifies the following class, for settlement purposes, under Federal Rule
of Civil Procedure 23:
All persons and entities throughout the United States (1) to whom I.Q. Data
International, Inc. made or caused to be made calls, (2) directed to a number
assigned to a unique cellular telephone, by (3) using an automatic telephone
dialing system or an artificial or prerecorded voice, (4) from February 11,
2010 through February 11, 2014.
See Grady v. de Ville Motor Hotel, Inc., 415 F.2d 449, 451 (10th Cir. 1969) (“It is well settled, as
a matter of sound policy, that the law should favor the settlement of controversies, and should not
discourage settlement by subjecting a person who has compromised a claim to the hazard of having
the settlement proved in a subsequent trial of another law suit by another person asserting a claim
related to the controversy settled.”); see also Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. v. Visa U.S.A., Inc., 396 F.3d
96, 116 (2d Cir. 2005) (“We are mindful of the strong judicial policy in favor of settlements,
particularly in the class action context.”); Cotton v. Hinton, 559 F.2d 1326, 1331 (5th Cir. 1977)
(““Particularly in class action suits, there is an overriding public interest in favor of settlement.”);
Van Bronkhorst v. Safeco Corp., 529 F.2d 943, 950 (9th Cir. 1976) (“It hardly seems necessary to
point out that there is an overriding public interest in settling and quieting litigation. This is
particularly true in class action suits . . . .”).
This Court finds that this matter meets the applicable prerequisites for class action treatment
under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23, namely:
1. The Class Members are so numerous that joinder of all of them is impracticable;
2. There are questions of law and fact common to the Class Members, which predominate
over any individual questions;
3. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the Class Members’ claims;
4. Plaintiff and Class Counsel have fairly and adequately represented and protected the
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interests of all of the Class Members; and
5. Class treatment of Plaintiff’s claims will be efficient and manageable, thereby
achieving an appreciable measure of judicial economy, and a class action is superior to
other available methods for a fair and efficient adjudication of this controversy.
This Court also appoints Jacqueline Jones as a class representative, and the following
attorneys and law firm as Class Counsel:
Aaron D. Radbil
Michael L. Greenwald
Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC
5550 Glades Rd., Suite 500
Boca Raton, FL 33431
See Esposito v. Deatrick & Spies, P.S.C., No. 7:13-CV-1416 GLS/TWD, 2015 WL 390392, at *2
(N.D.N.Y. Jan. 28, 2015) (“[T]he Court certifies . . . Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC as Class
Counsel.”); Green v. Dressman Benzinger Lavelle, PSC, No. 1:14-CV-00142-SJD, 2015 WL
223764, at *2 (S.D. Ohio Jan. 16, 2015) (“. . . Greenwald Davidson PLLC is certified as Class
Counsel.”); Donnelly v. EquityExperts.org, LLC, No. 4:13-CV-10017-TGB, 2015 WL 249522, at
*2 (E.D. Mich. Jan. 14, 2015) ([T]he Court certifies . . . Greenwald Davidson Radbil PLLC as
Class Counsel.”); Ritchie v. Van Ru Credit Corp., No. 2:12-CV-01714-PHX-SM, 2014 WL
3955268, at *2 (D. Ariz. Aug. 13, 2014) ([T]he Court certifies . . . Greenwald Davidson PLLC as
Class Counsel.”).
This Court approves the terms of the class action settlement, the material terms of which
include, but are not limited to:
Defendant will establish a settlement fund in the amount of $1,000,000. Out of the
settlement fund, Defendant will pay:
a. Damages to Plaintiff and the Class Members, in the amount of [$].
b. The costs and expenses of administrating the class action settlement, in the amount of
[$].
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c. An award of attorneys’ fees to Class Counsel, in the amount of [$].
d. Costs and expenses that Plaintiff and Class Counsel incurred litigating this matter, in
the amount of [$].
e. An incentive award to Plaintiff, in the amount of [$].
This Court additionally finds that the parties’ notice of class action settlement, and the
distribution thereof, satisfied the requirements of due process under the Constitution and Federal
Rule of Civil Procedure 23(e), that it was the best practicable notice under the circumstances, and
that it constitutes due and sufficient notice to all persons entitled to notice of class action
settlement. See DeJulius v. New England Health Care Employees Pension Fund, 429 F.3d 935,
944 (10th Cir. 2005) (“[O]ur precedent focuses upon whether the district court gave ‘the best notice
practicable under the circumstances including individual notice to all members who can be
identified through reasonable effort.’”) (quoting In re Integra Realty Res., Inc., 262 F.3d 1089,
1110 (10th Cir. 2001)).
This Court similarly finds that the parties’ notice of class action settlement was adequate
and gave all Class Members sufficient information to enable them to make informed decisions as
to the parties’ proposed settlement, and the right to object to, or opt-out of, it.
This Court additionally finds that parties’ settlement, on the terms and conditions set forth
in their class action settlement agreement, is in all respects fundamentally fair, reasonable,
adequate, and in the best interests of the class members. See Jones v. Nuclear Pharmacy, Inc., 741
F.2d 322, 324 (10th Cir. 1984) (“In assessing whether the settlement is fair, reasonable and
adequate the trial court should consider: (1) whether the proposed settlement was fairly and
honestly negotiated; (2) whether serious questions of law and fact exist, placing the ultimate
outcome of the litigation in doubt; (3) whether the value of an immediate recovery outweighs the
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mere possibility of future relief after protracted and expensive litigation; and (4) the judgment of
the parties that the settlement is fair and reasonable.”).
This Court finds that the class members were given a fair and reasonable opportunity to
object to the settlement. [No] Class Member objected to the settlement. And the class members
who made valid and timely requests for exclusion are excluded from the class and settlement and
are not bound by this order. There are [#] such persons, and they are listed on attached Exhibit A.
This order is binding on all Class Members, except those individuals who validly and
timely excluded themselves from the settlement.
This Court approves the individual and class releases set forth in the parties’ class action
settlement agreement. The Released Claims are consequently compromised, settled, released,
discharged, and dismissed with prejudice by virtue of these proceedings and this order.
Plaintiff, the Class Members, and all of their heirs, executors, administrators, successors,
assigns, and any person or entity acting for, on behalf of, or for the benefit of any such persons are
hereby permanently enjoined from suing upon, pursuing, or demanding any legal or equitable relief
for any of the Released Claims, save and except for the compensation set forth above.
This action is dismissed with prejudice as to all other issues and as to all parties and claims.
This court retains continuing and exclusive jurisdiction over the parties and all matters
relating this matter, including the administration, interpretation, construction, effectuation,
enforcement, and consummation of the settlement and this order.
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IT IS SO ORDERED.
Dated: ________________, 2015.

____________________________________
United States Circuit Judge
Sitting by designation
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